
 

Please note: Electronic copies of this agenda and its related papers  
are available via the Council’s website www.maldon.gov.uk. 

 

 

11 November 2025 

 

APOLOGIES: Committee Services  CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
Doug Wilkinson  Email: Committee.clerk@maldon.gov.uk  

 
 
Dear Councillor 

 
You are summoned to attend the meeting of the; 
 

CENTRAL AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE  

 

on WEDNESDAY 19 NOVEMBER 2025 at 7.30 pm 

 

in the Council Chamber, Maldon District Council Offices, Princes Road, Maldon. 

 
Please Note:  All meetings will continue to be live streamed on the Council’s YouTube channel for 
those wishing to observe remotely. Public participants wishing to speak remotely at a meeting can 
continue to do so via Microsoft Teams. 
 
To register your request to speak / attend in person please complete a Public Access form (to be 
submitted by 12noon on the working day before the Committee meeting). All requests will be 
considered on a first-come, first-served basis. 
 
A copy of the agenda is attached. 
 
Yours faithfully 

 
Chief Executive 
 
COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP:  

CHAIRPERSON Councillor P L Spenceley 

VICE-CHAIRPERSON Councillor A M Lay 

COUNCILLORS J R Burrell-Cook 
S J Burwood 
S Dodsley 
J Driver 
K Jennings 
K M H Lagan 
N D Spenceley 
J C Stilts 
N J Swindle 

Unrestricted Document Pack

http://www.maldon.gov.uk/
https://www.maldon.gov.uk/watchlive
https://forms.office.com/Pages/ResponsePage.aspx?id=VH_RilQmuUumwvI0YlcqFJCd4KzoXBdDs1brNZU39TJUOVpCU0xQVlRWQlhHVU8wVThIMU03UjFLSC4u


 

Page 2 

AGENDA 
CENTRAL AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 

WEDNESDAY 19 NOVEMBER 2025 
 
1. Chairperson's notices   
 
2. Apologies for Absence   
 
3. Minutes of the last meeting  (To Follow) 
 
 To confirm the Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 22 October 2025, 

(copy to follow). 
 

4. Disclosure of Interest   
 
 To disclose the existence and nature of any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, Other 

Registrable interests and Non-Registrable Interests relating to items of business on 
the agenda having regard to paragraph 9 and Appendix B of the Code of Conduct for 
Members.  
 
(Members are reminded that they are also required to disclose any such interests as 
soon as they become aware should the need arise throughout the meeting).  
 

5. 25/00605/FUL - Land Adjacent Heybridge House Industrial Estate, Bates Road, 
Maldon  (Pages 7 - 20) 

 
 To consider the report of the Director of Place, Planning and Growth, (copy enclosed, 

Members’ Update to be circulated)*. 
 

6. Any other items of business that the Chairperson of the Committee decides are 
urgent   

 
 

 
 

 
 

Note: 
1. The Council operates a facility for public participation. This will operate only in 

relation to the consideration and determination of planning applications under 
Agenda Item Nos. 5. 

2.  The Committee may consider representation from one objector, one supporter, a 
Parish / Town Council representative, and the applicant / agent. Please note that the 
opportunity to participate is afforded only to those having previously made written 
representation. 

3.  Anyone wishing to participate must register by completing the online form no later 
than noon on the working day before the Committee meeting. 

4.  For further information please see the Council’s website – 
www.maldon.gov.uk/committees  

* Please note the list of related Background Papers attached to this agenda. 

https://forms.office.com/Pages/ResponsePage.aspx?id=VH_RilQmuUumwvI0YlcqFJCd4KzoXBdDs1brNZU39TJUOVpCU0xQVlRWQlhHVU8wVThIMU03UjFLSC4u
http://www.maldon.gov.uk/committees


 

Page 3 

NOTICES 
 
Recording of Meeting 
Please note that the Council will be recording and publishing on the Council’s website any 
part of this meeting held in open session.   
 
Fire 
We do not have any fire alarm testing scheduled for this meeting. In the event of a fire, a 
siren will sound. Please use either of the two marked fire escape routes. Once out of the 
building please proceed to the designated muster point located on the grass verge by the 
police station entrance. Please gather there and await further instruction. If you feel you may 
need assistance to evacuate the building, please make a member of Maldon District Council 
staff aware. 
 
Health and Safety 
Please be advised of the different levels of flooring within the Council Chamber.   
 
Closed-Circuit Televisions (CCTV) 
Meetings held in the Council Chamber are being monitored and recorded by CCTV. 
 
Lift 
Please be aware, there is not currently lift access to the Council Chamber. 

 



 

Page 4 

DISTRICT AND AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
The Background Papers listed below have been relied upon in the preparation of this report: 

1. The current planning applications under consideration and related correspondence. 

2. All third-party representations and consultation replies received. 

3. The following Statutory Development Plans and Other Material Considerations: 
 

Statutory Development Plans 

 Maldon District Local Development Plan 2014-2029 - approved by the Secretary of 
State 21 July 2017 

 

 Burnham-On-Crouch Neighbourhood Development Plan (Made 7 Sept 2017) 

 Wickham Bishops Neighbourhood Development Plan (Made 30 June 2021) 

 Langford and Ulting Neighbourhood Development Plan (Made 31 March 2022) 

 Great Totham Neighbourhood Development Plan and Village Design Statement 
(Made 6 July 2022) 

 Mayland Neighbourhood Plan (Made 25 September 2025)  
 

 Essex and Southend on Sea Waste Local Plan 2017 

 Essex Minerals Local Plan 2014 
 

Other Material Considerations 

Legislation 

 The Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (as amended) 

 The Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) 

 Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 

 Planning (Hazardous Substances) Act 1990 

 The Planning and Compensation Act 1991  

 Human Rights Act 1998 

 The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended) 

 The Town and Country Planning (Control of Advertisements) (England) Regulations 2007 

 Localism Act 2011 

 The Planning Act 2008 

 Marine and Coastal Access Act 2009 

 Equality Act 2010 

 The Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) 

 The Town and Country Planning (Tree Preservation) (England) Regulations 2012 

 The Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012 (as amended) 

 The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (as 
amended) 

 Growth and Infrastructure Act 2013 

 The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (as 
amended) 

https://www.maldon.gov.uk/downloads/file/14807/approved_maldon_district_local_development_plan_2014-2029
https://www.maldon.gov.uk/downloads/file/15826/burnham-on-crouch_ndp_made_070717_final
https://www.maldon.gov.uk/downloads/file/18555/wbnp_march_2021_final_version
http://www.maldon.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/18828/referendum_version_of_langford_and_ulting_neighbourhood_plan_jan_22.pdf
http://www.maldon.gov.uk/downloads/file/18974/great_totham_neighbourhood_plan_-_referendum_version
http://www.maldon.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/18952/gtnp_appendix_1_village_design_statement.pdf
https://www.maldon.gov.uk/downloads/file/20038/made_plan_2021-2042
https://www.essex.gov.uk/sites/default/files/migration_data/files/assets.ctfassets.net/knkzaf64jx5x/5MMZ5nNFmOClpF56igb0Jc/e6f7ab4cba4ed1198c67b87be7b375e7/waste-local-plan-2017-compressed.pdf
https://www.essex.gov.uk/sites/default/files/migration_data/files/assets.ctfassets.net/knkzaf64jx5x/5UZuVtnjZbJ81olvZoZKVX/90acfc65df6fa8ee8ab20df3f0cda1c8/essex-minerals-local-plan-adopted-july-2014.pdf
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/1987/764/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1990/8/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1990/9/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1990/10/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1991/34#:~:text=An%20Act%20to%20amend%20the%20law%20relating%20to,are%20displaced%20from%20land%20or%20the%20value%20o
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1998/42/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/5/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2007/783/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2011/20/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2008/29/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2009/23/contents/2024-05-09
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2010/15/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2010/9780111492390/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/605/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/637/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/767/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2013/27/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/596/contents


 

Page 5 

 The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 
2015 

 Housing and Planning Act 2016 

 The Self-build and Custom Housebuilding Regulations 2016 

 The Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017 

 Neighbourhood Planning Act 2017 

 The Town and Country Planning (Brownfield Land Register) Regulations 2017 

 The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 

 Environment Act 2021 

 Levelling Up and Regeneration Act 2023 

 The Biodiversity Gain (Town and Country Planning) (Consequential Amendments) 
Regulations 2024 

 The Biodiversity Gain Requirements (Exemptions) Regulations 2024 

 The Biodiversity Gain (Town and Country Planning) (Modifications and Amendments) 
(England) Regulations 2024 

National Planning Policy  

 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 

 Planning Policy for Travellers Sites 2024  

 Written Ministerial Statements – as / if referred to in the report 

 Government Circulars – as / if referred to in the report 

Guidance, Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD) and Design Statements  

National-scale 

 National Planning Practice Guidance 

Sub-Regional / Essex-scale 

 Essex and South Suffolk Shoreline Management Plan (SMP) - October 2010 

 South East Inshore Marine Plan - June 2021 

 The Essex Design Guide  

District-scale 

 North Heybridge Garden Suburb Strategic Masterplan Framework – 2014 

 Maldon District Design Guide SPD 2018 

 Maldon and Heybridge Central Area Masterplan SPD – 2017 

 South Maldon Garden Suburb Strategic Masterplan Framework SPD – 2018  

 Maldon District Vehicle Parking Standards SPD – 2018 

 Maldon District Renewable and Low Carbon Technologies SPD – 2018 

 Maldon District Specialist Needs Housing SPD – 2018 

 Maldon District Affordable Housing and Viability SPD – 2018- amended 2019 

 Maldon District Green Infrastructure Strategy SPD - 2019 

 Essex Coast Recreational Disturbance Avoidance Mitigation Strategy (RAMS) SPD - 2020 

 North Quay Development Brief SPD - 2020  

 Maldon District Five Year Housing Land Annual Supply Statement – May 2024 
 

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/595/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/595/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2016/22/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2016/950/contents/made
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/environmental-impact-assessment
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2017/20/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2017/403/contents#:~:text=These%20Regulations%20place%20a%20duty%20on%20each%20local,%E2%80%9Cbrownfield%20land%E2%80%9D%29%20which%20is%20suitable%20for%20residential%20development.
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2017/1012/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2021/30/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2023/55/contents
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2024/9780348254419
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2024/9780348254419
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2024/9780348254419
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2024/47/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2024/50/contents/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2024/50/contents/made
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/675abd214cbda57cacd3476e/NPPF-December-2024.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/planning-policy-for-traveller-sites/planning-policy-for-traveller-sites
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/planning-practice-guidance
https://environment.data.gov.uk/shoreline-planning/shoreline-management-plan/SMP8
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/60f6f6dde90e0764ccfbd836/FINAL_South_East_Marine_Plan__1_.pdf
https://www.essexdesignguide.co.uk/
https://www.maldon.gov.uk/publications/LDP/supporting_documents/4%20Other/DOC122.pdf
https://www.maldon.gov.uk/info/7050/planning_policy/9715/maldon_district_design_guide
https://www.maldon.gov.uk/info/7050/planning_policy/9717/maldon_and_heybridge_central_area_masterplan
https://www.maldon.gov.uk/publications/LDP/supporting_documents/4%20Other/DOC121.pdf
https://www.maldon.gov.uk/info/7050/planning_policy/8114/other_local_plan_documents/5
https://www.maldon.gov.uk/info/7050/planning_policy/8114/other_local_plan_documents/2
https://www.maldon.gov.uk/info/7050/planning_policy/8114/other_local_plan_documents/4
https://www.maldon.gov.uk/info/7050/planning_policy/8114/other_local_plan_documents/3
https://www.maldon.gov.uk/info/7050/planning_policy/8114/other_local_plan_documents/7
https://www.maldon.gov.uk/info/7050/planning_policy/8114/other_local_plan_documents/8
https://www.maldon.gov.uk/info/7050/planning_policy/8114/other_local_plan_documents/9
https://www.maldon.gov.uk/info/7050/planning_policy/9722/monitoring_documents


 

Page 6 

Local-scale  

 Heybridge Basin Village Design Statement – 2007 

 Althorne Village Design Statement - 2015 

 Woodham Walter Village Design Statement – 2017 

Maldon District Local Development Plan Review Evidence Base  

 Various Conservation Area Appraisals 

 Maldon District Viability Study 2020 

 Maldon District Economic Study 2020 

 Maldon District Local Housing Needs Assessment 2021 

 Maldon District Nature Conservation Study 2022 

 Assessment of Selected Sites  

 Maldon District Local Wildlife Sites Register 2022 

 Maldon Wildlife Sites Ratification Letter 2024 

 Maldon District Rural Facilities Survey and Settlement Pattern 2023 

 Maldon District Housing and Economic Land Availability Assessment (HELAA) 2023 

 Maldon District Employment Land and Premises Study 2024 

 Appendix G 

 Appendix H  

 Appendix I 

 Appendix J 

 
 

All Background Papers are available for electronic inspection at the Maldon District Council 
Offices, Princes Road, Maldon, Essex CM9 5DL during opening hours. 

https://www.maldon.gov.uk/downloads/file/8039/heybridge_basin_vds_2006
https://www.maldon.gov.uk/downloads/file/8036/althorne_vds_2015
https://www.maldon.gov.uk/downloads/file/14780/woodham_walter_village_design_statement
https://www.maldon.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/18819/cil_viability_2020.pdf
https://www.maldon.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/18697/maldon_district_economy_study_january_2021.pdf
https://www.maldon.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/18676/maldon_district_local_housing_needs_assessment_may_2021.pdf
https://www.maldon.gov.uk/downloads/file/19766/maldon_nature_conservation_study_2022
https://www.maldon.gov.uk/downloads/file/19767/maldon_nature_conservation_study_-_assessment_of_selected_sites
https://www.maldon.gov.uk/downloads/file/19768/maldon_local_wildlife_sites_register_2022
https://www.maldon.gov.uk/downloads/file/19769/maldon_wildlife_sites_ratification_letter
https://www.maldon.gov.uk/downloads/file/19488/maldon_district_rural_facilities_survey_and_settlement_pattern_2023
https://www.maldon.gov.uk/downloads/file/19445/housing_and_economic_land_availability_assessment_october_2023
https://www.maldon.gov.uk/downloads/file/19675/maldon_employment_land_and_premises_study
https://www.maldon.gov.uk/downloads/file/19676/elps_-_appendix_g
https://www.maldon.gov.uk/downloads/file/19677/elps_-_appendix_h
https://www.maldon.gov.uk/downloads/file/19678/elps_-_appendix_i
https://www.maldon.gov.uk/downloads/file/19679/elps_-_appendix_j
https://www.maldon.gov.uk/info/20061/your_council/9231/contact_us#:~:text=The%20Council%20offices%20are%20open%20weekdays%2010am%20-,require%20an%20appointment%20to%20be%20made%20before%20visiting%29.


 

Our Vision: Where Quality of Life Matters 

REPORT of 
DIRECTOR OF PLACE, PLANNING AND GROWTH  

to 
CENTRAL AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 
19 NOVEMBER  2025 
 

Application Number 25/00605/FUL 

Location 
Land Adjacent Heybridge House Industrial Estate Bates Road 
Maldon 

Proposal 
Retrospective application for storage of empty bins, empty skips 
and lorries associated with neighbouring use 

Applicant Mr Robert Smith - CSH Environmental 

Agent Mr Paul Calder - Next Steps Planning Ltd 

Target Decision Date 28 November 2025 (Time Extended) 

Case Officer Chris Purvis 

Parish MALDON NORTH  

Reason for Referral to the 
Committee / Council 

Called in by Cllr Nick Spenceley over concerns with flood risk 
and policy D5, impact upon green infrastructure and policy N1, 
and to consider biodiversity and policy N2. 

1. RECOMMENDATION 

 
APPROVE subject to the conditions (as detailed in Section 8 of this report). 

2. SITE MAP 

 
Please see below. 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



 

 

 
  

Page 8



 

 

 

3. SUMMARY 

 
3.1 Introduction 

 
3.1.1 This application was considered at the Central Area Planning Committee meeting on 

22 October 2025. There was a miscalculation of the numbers voting in favour of 
approving the planning application and instead it was believed that there was a tied 
vote. Therefore, the Chair had the right to use a casting vote and chose to exercise 
that extra vote against approval of the planning application. This of course meant that 
the application had not been granted but for constitutional reasons the matter has to 
come back to the committee for a further review (the constitutional break) because 
there was an officer recommendation in favour of approval. 
 

3.1.2 In light of this error, Officers have sought legal advice from the Monitoring Officer and 
therefore the planning application is returning to the committee for a fresh 
consideration of the application. The Council can still reconsider the whole 
application and make a fresh and separate decision based on the re-consideration of 
the application.  

 
3.1.3 The report below is therefore the same as the report considered at the Central Area 

Planning Committee meeting on 22 October 2025 but with the following updates: 
 

- This introduction section 
- Inclusion of the condition from the Members Update report from 22 October 2025 
- Inclusion of additional wording in the Main Considerations sections 5.2 and 5.4 

regarding landscaping and an acoustic barrier considerations. 
- Inclusion of two additional planning conditions for the requirement of landscaping 

planting and an acoustic barrier. 
 
3.2 Proposal / brief overview, including any relevant background information 

 
Site Description 
 

3.2.1 This application relates to the parcel of land to the north of Bates Road. The site is 
undulating with an existing public footpath located on an embankment which runs 
along the southern boundary. The site has a further public footpath running along its 
north-eastern perimeter connecting Bates Road to Hall Road and The Street in 
Heybridge to the north. The majority of the site is currently enclosed by a mixture of 
palisade fencing (south-eastern and part of north-eastern boundaries) and post and 
wire fencing (south-western and north-western boundaries).  
 

3.2.2 The northern boundary of the site is adjacent to part of the River Blackwater. Beyond 
the north-eastern boundary of the site is a mixture of residential and commercial uses 
which back onto the site including the Heybridge Inn which is a grade II listed building 
located around 20m to the north of the site. The nearest residential property is 10m 
from the site. The site adjoins the Quayside Industrial Estate and is adjacent to an 
existing car park which is unrelated to the site. The Heybridge House Industrial 
Estate is located immediately to the west. 
 
Description of the Proposal 
 

3.2.3 Retrospective planning permission is sought for the storage of empty bins, empty 
skips and lorries associated with neighbouring use. That neighbouring use is the 
Green Recycling business located at the eastern end of Bates Road.  

Page 9



 

 

 
3.2.4 In terms of the application site the bins, skips and lorry vehicle storage areas are 

allocated on an existing hardstanding along the eastern and southern boundaries of 
the site. It is stated that they would not exceed 2m in height and that the bins are 
anchored to the ground to ensure they would not float or leave the site boundaries in 
the event of a flood through secure cables. No bins or skips are used for waste 
purposes on site and cleaning of the empty bins and skips takes place at the nearby 
Green Recycling business located at the eastern end of Bates Road. 

 
3.2.5 Access to the site is gained off Bates Road via an existing vehicle access.  

 
3.3 Conclusion 
 
3.3.1 The principle of the development is not contrary to policy and the Environment 

Agency have no objection to this use within a high risk flood zone. The site has 
limited public impact in this location, and the use does not present any access, 
parking or highway safety issues. The use of the site is considered acceptable in 
regard to neighbouring uses to the north separated from the site by a section of the 
Chelmer and Blackwater Navigation and existing vegetation. Planning conditions are 
recommended to mitigate the impact of the development. For these reasons the use 
of the site does not conflict with policies of the Local Development Plan (LDP) nor the 
guidance within the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) / Planning Practice 
Guidance (PPG). 

4. MAIN RELEVANT POLICIES 

 
Members’ attention is drawn to the list of background papers attached to the agenda. 

 
4.1 National Planning Policy Framework including paragraphs: 

 

 7   Sustainable development 

 8   Three objectives of sustainable development 

 10-12  Presumption in favour of sustainable development 

 38   Decision-making 

 47-50  Determining applications 

 54-58  Planning Conditions and Obligations 

 85-89  Building a strong, competitive economy 

 108-117  Promoting sustainable transport 

 123-127  Making effective use of land 

 131-141  Achieving well-designed places 

 157-175  Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding, and coastal change 

 180-194  Conserving and enhancing the natural environment 

 202-221  Conserving and enhancing the historic environment 

 
4.2 Maldon District Local Development Plan 2014 – 2029 approved by the Secretary 

of State: 
 

 S1  Sustainable Development 

 S5  Maldon and Heybridge Central Area 

 S8  Settlement Boundaries and the Countryside 

 D1  Design Quality and Built Environment 

Page 10



 

 

 D2  Climate Change and Environmental Impact of New Development 

 D3  Conservation and Heritage Assets 

 D5  Flood Risk and Coastal Management 

 E1  Employment 

 N1  Green Infrastructure Network 

 N2  Natural Environment, Geodiversity and Biodiversity 

 T1  Sustainable Transport 

 T2  Accessibility 

 
4.3 Relevant Planning Guidance / Documents:  

 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)  

 National Planning Policy Guidance (NPPG)  

 Maldon and Heybridge Central Area Masterplan Supplementary Planning 
Document (SPD) (2017) 

 Maldon District Vehicle Parking Standards Supplementary Planning Document 
(SPD) (2018)  

 Maldon District Design Guide (MDDG) (2017)  

 Essex Coast Recreational disturbance Avoidance and Mitigation Strategy 
(RAMS) SPD 

 

5. MAIN CONSIDERATIONS 

 
5.1 Principle of Development and Flood Risk 

 
Policy Context 

 
5.1.1 The LDP Proposals map shows that the application site does not have any 

designated land use in planning policy terms. It lies outside of the nearby 
Employment Land designations to the south whereby policy E1 is applicable. The site 
is shown on the LDP Proposals map as ‘white land’ with no policy designation; 
however, the site does fall within the wider area of the Maldon and Heybridge Central 
Area whereby policy S5 is applicable.  
 

5.1.2 The site is within the development boundary for Maldon/Heybridge but does not form 
part of any allocation within the approved Maldon District LDP as it is shown as ‘white 
land’ with no policy designation. However, the adjacent industrial estate is an 
allocated employment site in the LDP where policy E1 is applicable. The site forms 
part of the Causeway Regeneration Area which is within the Maldon and Heybridge 
Central Area Masterplan where policy S5 is applicable. As part of the Masterplan, the 
application is identified as a site of Local Ecological Importance and the stretch of the 
River Blackwater forms part of a Green Corridor. 
 

5.1.3 Policy S5 for the Central Area incorporates the Causeway Regeneration Area, where 
this is site located. Policy S5 states that ‘the Central Area will continue to act as the 
focal point within the District for retail, commercial, industrial, community and tourism 
activities. It will be a thriving and vibrant destination that has strong connections with 
surrounding areas and is supported by its heritage assets, waterways and green 
spaces’. The policy includes a number of points for achieving the development and 
regeneration strategy for the Central Area and relevant to this application are the 
following two points:  
 

Page 11



 

 

3) Renewal of the Causeway Regeneration Area to improve the supply of high quality 
Use Class B floorspace (commercial and industrial), and increase employment. This 
will include the provision of: modern workspaces suitable for small and medium sized 
enterprises; start-up units; support for existing businesses that are seeking to expand 
and mixed-use developments which enable significant numbers of jobs to be created; 
 
10) Minimise all forms of flood risk and ensure that flood infrastructure are effectively 
managed. 

 
5.1.4 The existing use does not provide new floorspace and the application forms state no 

new jobs would be created due to the use operating alongside the Greens Recycling 
use at the end of Bates Road where staff currently work. There is no conflict with 
regard to the use of the land and policy S5 point 3. 
 

5.1.5 In addition to policy S5, the Maldon and Heybridge Central Area Masterplan was 
produced in 2017 and is a Supplementary Planning Document (SPD). The purpose 
of this is to promote investment in this area, identify opportunities for delivery of 
projects, provide an action plan for delivery of those projects whilst developing 
recommendations on location, mix, scale and design of new development and the 
treatment of the public realm and landscape setting which reflects the distinctive 
character and heritage of the Maldon and Heybridge Central Area, along with 
transport and car parking management. Having reviewed the document there is 
nothing specific to this site to prevent planning permission from being issued. 

 
5.1.6 For the reasons stated above there are no objections to the principle of the 

development in policy terms.  
 
Flood Risk  
 

5.1.7 Policy D5 of the LDP states that the Council’s approach is to direct strategic growth 
towards lower flood risk areas, such as Flood Zone 1 as identified by the 
Environment Agency. Where development is not located in Flood Zone 1 and in order 
to minimise the risk of flooding, it should be demonstrated that the Sequential and 
Exception Tests, where necessary, have been satisfactorily undertaken in 
accordance with national planning policy. Policy S1 requires that new development is 
either located away from high risk flood areas or is safe and flood resilient when it is 
not possible to avoid such areas. The PPG on Flood Risk and Coastal Change also 
provides guidance for consideration. 
 

5.1.8 One of the key considerations with this site is that it is located in a high-risk flood 
zone, which is Flood Zone 3b, which is defined as the Functional Flood Plain in the 
PPG for Flood Risk. As part of the functional flood plain development or certain uses 
are not normally permitted. This would also be a key reason the site is not included in 
the Employment Land designation directly to the south. A section of the Chelmer and 
Blackwater Navigation is located directly to the north east of the site but is outside of 
the site.   
 

5.1.9 In policy terms for minor development like this paragraph 176 of the NPPF states that 
‘applications for changes of use should not be subject to the sequential test nor the 
exception test but should still meet the requirement of site-specific flood risk 
assessments’. Therefore, the sequential test and the exception test are not required 
for assessment for this application.  

 
5.1.10 The application includes a site specific Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) which identifies 

the site is at risk from extreme rainfall events, fluvial flooding due to overtopping of 
sea defences, failure of a reservoir and failure of a water main or sewer 

Page 12



 

 

infrastructure. However, the sea defences are maintained and the failure of a 
reservoir is unlikely. Given the use of the site the FRA identifies there would be 
limited access to the site and staff visits would be intermittent given this is a storage 
use. The FRA states that the scale of the proposal would not have any substantial 
impact on the functional floodplain and the site is classed as a ‘Less Vulnerable’ use 
based on the PPG guidance.  

 
5.1.11 Crucial to the assessment of flood risk in the Functional Flood Plain are the views of 

the Environment Agency who have confirmed that they have no objection to the 
application as the use is a ‘Less Vulnerable’ as based on the PPG guidance and this 
use is acceptable in this location.  

 
5.1.12 Given the site is within the Functional Flood Plain a Flood Warning and Evacuation 

Plan (FWEP) is required to ensure staff and users of the site understand the 
necessary procedures in an emergency flood event. The applicant’s site specific 
Flood Risk Assessment identifies this as a requirement.  

 
5.1.13 Therefore, the use of the land for the storage of empty bins, skips and lorry vehicle 

storage does not raise any objection in flood risk terms based on this information and 
this does not conflict with policy S5 point 10 nor policy D5. 

 
Relevant Planning History  

 
5.1.14 As detailed in the Planning History section of this report this application follows on 

from a previous application (24/00643/LDP) that sought to claim of lawful 
development certificate for use for proposed use of the site for storage purposes 
(Class B8) that was refused because the use is already an existing unauthorised use 
on site and not a proposed use.  
 

5.1.15 As permission was refused the applicant now seeks planning permission to retain the 
use of land for storage purposes for empty bins, empty skips and lorries associated 
with neighbouring use.  
 
Summary  

 
5.1.16 In terms of the principle of this development and flood risk, given that the use of the 

land is not contrary to Local Plan policy S5, which is the only policy designation that 
affects this site, and given that the Environment Agency have no objection to the use 
within a high risk flood zone, it is considered that the principle of this development 
and flood risk is acceptable in this instance.  

 
5.2 Visual Impact upon the Character of the Area 
 
5.2.1 The principle of good inclusive design and layout and sustainable development has 

been reflected in the approved Local Development Plan, primarily with policy D1 
which seeks to ensure that all development will respect and enhance the character 
and local context. Similar support for high quality design and the appropriate layout, 
scale and detailing of development is found within the MDDG which recognises that 
Heybridge is one of the main towns where buildings, hierarchy and mix of uses are 
the dominant features. 
 

5.2.2 The change of use of the land for the storage of empty bins, empty skips and lorries 
associated with neighbouring use has already taken place allowing for assessment of 
the visual impacts of the proposal upon the site and its surroundings. The site is 
located behind existing commercial development in Bates Road but is located 
adjacent to two footpaths, one located on an embankment which runs along the 

Page 13



 

 

southern boundary, and the other running along its north-eastern perimeter 
connecting Bates Road to Hall Road, and The Street in Heybridge to the north. 
Therefore, the site has some visual impact to passing pedestrians. However, in this 
location the site is generally away from the main public thoroughfares of the area and 
is a use that would be expected to be provided in an industrial location such as this. 
The bins and skips stored on site are a stark green colour to reflect the business’s 
corporate colours. Following correspondence with the agent it has been agreed that 
landscaping can be planted within the site, around the edges of the site to help soften 
the appearance of the site and the surrounding area. This landscaping shall be 
secured through a planning condition that has been included in the Recommendation 
section of this report.  

 
5.2.3 Having regard to the site’s limited visibility the visual impact of the proposed use is 

acceptable in this location and therefore there are no conflicts with policy D1 nor the 
guidance within the NPPF. 
 

5.3 Access, Parking and Highway Safety 
 
5.3.1 Policy T2 aims to create and maintain an accessible environment, requiring 

development proposals, inter alia, to provide sufficient parking facilities having regard 
to the Council’s adopted parking standards. Similarly, policy D1 of the approved LDP 
seeks to include safe and secure vehicle and cycle parking having regard to the 
Council’s adopted parking standards and maximise connectivity within the 
development and to the surrounding areas including the provision of high quality and 
safe pedestrian, cycle and, where appropriate, horse riding routes.  
 

5.3.2 Access to the site is via a spur road off Bates Road. The use is part of the nearby 
existing Green Recycling use which is beneficial in sustainability terms in transporting 
the bins and skips to this site. Within the site there is turning spaces for vehicles to 
enter in and leave in a forward gear. Essex County Council, as the Local Highway 
Authority, have no objections to the application with regard to the access or highway 
safety matters.  

 
5.3.3 The Council’s adopted Vehicle Parking Standards SPD (VPS) (2018) contains the 

parking standards which are expressed as minimum standards. This takes into 
account Government guidance which encourages the reduction in the reliance on the 
car and promotes methods of sustainable transport. 

 
5.3.4 For this use, the B8 parking standards would apply for a storage and distribution use. 

However, those standards are based on the creation of floorspace and this 
application does not create floorspace as this is an open air storage use and the 
applicant’s completed application forms states that the use has not resulted in any 
new jobs on site as existing employees visiting the site are those from the 
neighbouring Greens Recycling site at the end of Bates Road. Therefore, the use 
does not require parking provision based on the VPS and the use would not generate 
any significant parking demand for there to be any significant parking issues nor 
would this lead to on street parking stress in this location.  

 
5.3.5 The use does not present any access, parking or highway safety issues and is 

therefore acceptable having regard to policies D1 and T2 of the LDP.  
 
5.4 Impact on Neighbouring Amenity 

 
5.4.1 The basis of policy D1 in the approved LDP seeks to ensure that development will 

protect the amenity of its surrounding areas taking into account privacy, overlooking, 

Page 14



 

 

outlook, noise, smell, light, visual impact, pollution, daylight and sunlight. This is 
supported by section C07 of the MDDG. 
 

5.4.2 To the north eastern boundary of the site is Hall Road where there are a row of 
residential properties that have rear gardens that are close to the site’s boundary with 
a section of the Chelmer and Blackwater Navigation located in between. To the 
northern boundary of the site are properties in The Street including a mix of 
commercial and residential properties, also with a section of the Chelmer and 
Blackwater Navigation located in between. In addition, an existing area of 
landscaping provides a buffer in between land that falls outside of the site but in 
between the rear boundaries of these properties and the area of the site where the 
bin and skip storage use takes place. An additional planning condition has been 
included requiring landscaping details to be agreed but another planning condition is 
also required to provide acoustic barrier to the rear of the site closest to the nearest 
residential properties, to address noise and disturbance implications upon the 
amenities of these properties.  

 
5.4.3 There are no buildings that are existing or proposed with this application, but the 

storage of empty bins, empty skips and lorries associated with neighbouring use on 
the site could have an impact upon residential amenity and therefore consideration 
needs to be given to limiting the height of these storage elements. The applicant has 
stated that nothing would be stored above 2m in height and this can be subject to a 
planning condition to ensure this height limit is achieved in the interests of the 
amenity of the area. The existing section of the Chelmer and Blackwater Navigation 
and the existing landscaping also helps to provides a buffer zone from the site to the 
properties in Hall Road.  

 
5.4.4 In terms of the use, an hours of use condition can be imposed that can also cover 

deliveries and collections of the bins to protect nearby residents from associated 
noise and activity outside of normal working day operating hours.  

 
5.4.5 Subject to the above conditions being imposed the use of the site is considered 

acceptable in this location which appears as part of the Bates Road industrial estate 
given its road connections and neighbouring uses to the south, with existing buildings 
and uses to the north separated from the site by a section of the Chelmer and 
Blackwater Navigation and existing vegetation. For these reasons the use of the site 
does not conflict with policy D1 of the LDP. 

 
5.5 Other Matters 
 
5.5.1 With regard to ecology, there is no on-site ecology and the site does not fall within 

ecology designation as these are distant from the site and the change of use of the 
land would not warrant any further assessment under the Habitat Regulations.  

 
5.5.2 With regard to Biodiversity Net Gain, the PPG states that this is not applicable to 

retrospective planning applications.  

6. ANY RELEVANT SITE HISTORY 

 
6.1 The relevant planning history is summarised below: 

 

Reference Description Decision 

   

24/00643/LDP Claim of lawful development certificate 
for proposed use for storage (Class 
B8) 

Refused 

Page 15



 

 

20/01315/FUL Construction of open sided storage 
barn (resubmission of 20/00388/FUL) 

Refused and then 
Appeal Dismissed 

20/00388/FUL Construction of open sided storage 
barn 

Refused 

14/00576/FUL Proposed mixed use development 
comprising offices, education centre 
and storage and distribution 
warehousing. 

Refused 

10/01100/FUL Proposed open sided (Dutch) barn Approved 

10/00602/FUL Proposed open sided storage (dutch) 
barn 

Refused 

96/00615/FUL Erection of new industrial unit in two 
phases including associated site 
works and parking areas 

Approved and 
implemented 

7. CONSULTATIONS AND REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED 

 
7.1 Representations received from Parish / Town Councils 
 

Name of Parish / 
Town Council 

Comment Officer Response 

Heybridge Parish 
Council 

Recommend refusal due to 
Possible contamination of 
watercourse 
Noise pollution 
Pollution from vehicle/plant 
movements 
Potential loss of habitat for wildlife 
The site is within flood zone 3a 
and 3b creating potential risk of 
tidal and fluvial flooding 
 

See Main Considerations 
section that considers all 
these points 

 
7.2 Statutory Consultees and Other Organisations (summarised) 
 

Name of 
Statutory 

Consultee / Other 
Organisation 

Comment Officer Response 

Environment 
Agency 

No objection as this would be a 
‘less vulnerable’ use as defined 
in the Annex 3: Flood 
Vulnerability classification from 
the PPG 

See Main Considerations 
section 5.1 of the report 

Essex County 
Council Highways 

No objections 
See Main Considerations 
section 5.3 of the report 

 
7.3 Internal Consultees (summarised) 
 

Name of Internal 
Consultee 

Comment Officer Response 

Environmental 
Health 

No objections but suggest 
placing restrictions on the hours 
of during which skips can be 
brought onto and off of the site 

See Main Considerations 
section 5.4 of the report 

Page 16



 

 

Name of Internal 
Consultee 

Comment Officer Response 

to reduce the likelihood of 
causing adverse impacts from 
noise. Suggest a condition 
regarding artificial lighting. 
Environmental Health 
investigated two complaints of 
noise, two of odour and two of 
rat activity between 2023 and 
2025 but insufficient evidence to 
warrant formal intervention was 
found 

 
7.4 Representations received from Interested Parties (summarised) 
 
7.4.1 2 responses were received objecting to the application and the reasons for 

objection are summarised as set out in the table below:  
 

Objection Comment Officer Response 

Volume of traffic using Bates Road and 
careless drivers 

See Main Considerations section 5.3 of 
the report 

Land previously open space and is now 
an eyesore with security fencing and is 
becoming a dumping ground 

See Main Considerations section 5.2 of 
the report 

Loud noises, skips noisy, dust and foul 
odours from the site 

See Main Considerations section 5.4 of 
the report 

Use is at weekends as well as 
weekdays 

See Main Considerations section 5.4 of 
the report 

Affects nearby residents’ outdoor space 
See Main Considerations section 5.4 of 
the report 

Site has previous refused planning 
permissions 

See planning history section of the 
report 

Concern over the protection of wildlife 
See Main Considerations section 5.5 of 
the report 

The site is a flood plain 
See Main Considerations section 5.1 of 
the report 

Site is used to store lorries, plant and 
machinery 

The application description as amended 
covers what is on site and what has 
been applied for 

Light pollution 
See Main Considerations section 5.4 of 
the report 

Excessive vibrations from vehicle and 
plant movements 

See Main Considerations section 5.4 of 
the report 

Loss of natural habitat for wildlife There is no ecological habitats on site 

Increase in rats Not a planning consideration 

8. PROPOSED CONDITIONS  

 
1. Notwithstanding the time limits given to implement planning permission as 

prescribed by Sections 91 and 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 
(as amended), this permission in so far as it relates to the development (being 
granted under section 73A of the Act in respect of development already carried 
out) shall have effect from the date of this decision notice.  
REASON: To ensure clarification of the works commenced in accordance with 

Page 17



 

 

Section 73A of Chapter 8, Part III, of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 
(as amended). 

 
2. The site shall only be used for the storage of empty bins, empty skips and lorries 

associated with neighbouring use and for no other purpose including any purpose 
as defined within Class B8 of the Schedule to the Town & Country Planning [Use 
Classes] Order 1987 [as amended] [or in any provision equivalent to that Class in 
any statutory instrument revoking or re-enacting that Order with or without 
modification].  
REASON: In the interests of amenity and to ensure that the development remains 
integrated with it’s immediate as required by policy D1 of the Maldon District 
Local Development Plan.  

 
3. The use hereby permitted shall only be undertaken between 08:00 hours and 

18:00 hours on weekdays and between 08:00 hours and 13:00 hours on 
Saturdays and not at any time on Sundays and Public Holidays. 
REASON: In the interests of amenity and to ensure that the development remains 
integrated with its surroundings as required by policy D1 of the Maldon District 
Local Development Plan. 

 
4. Deliveries to and collections from the site shall only be undertaken between 

08:00 hours and 18:00 hours on weekdays and between 08:00 hours and 13:00 
hours on Saturdays and not at any time on Sundays and Bank and Public 
Holidays. 
REASON:: In the interests of amenity and to ensure that the development 
remains integrated with its surroundings as required by policy D1 of the Maldon 
District Local Development Plan. 

 
5. No waste transfer processes or cleaning processes shall be undertaken on sit  

REASON: In the interests of amenity and to ensure that the development remains 
integrated with its surroundings as required by policy D1 of the Maldon District 
Local Development Plan. 

 
6. No bins or skips shall be stacked, stored or deposited on the site to a height 

exceeding 2.0 metres. 
REASON:: In the interests of amenity and to ensure that the development 
remains integrated with its surroundings as required by policy D1 of the Maldon 
District Local Development Plan. 

 
7. No means of external illumination of the site shall be installed at the site. 

REASON: In the interests of amenity and to ensure that the development can be 
integrated within its immediate surroundings in accordance with policy D1 of the 
Maldon District Local Development Plan. 
 

8. Within 2 months of the date of this planning permission a Flood Warning and 
Evacuation Plan [FWEP] shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
local planning authority. The approved measures within the Flood Warning and 
Evacuation Plan [FWEP] shall be implemented within one week following its 
written approval by the local planning authority, shall be made available for 
inspection by all users of the site and shall be displayed in a visible location all 
times thereafter. 
REASON: To ensure that adequate flood warning and evacuation measures are 
available for all users of the development in accordance with policy D5 of the 
Maldon District Local Development Plan. 

 

Page 18



 

 

9. Within 2 months of the date of this planning permission, the site shall be laid out 
in accordance with the approved plans and retained as such.  
REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and to safeguard nearby residential 
amenity in accordance with policy D1 of the Maldon District Local Development 
Plan. 

 
10. Within 2 months of the date of this planning permission full details of soft 

landscape works to be carried out within the site shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the local planning authority. This shall include details of the 
soft landscape works including schedules of shrubs and trees to be planted, 
noting the species, stock size, proposed numbers/densities and details of the 
planting scheme’s implementation, aftercare and maintenance programme. The 
soft landscape works shall be carried out as approved within first available 
planting season (October to March inclusive) following approval of the soft 
landscaping works. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting of 
any tree or plant, or any tree or plant planted in its replacement, is removed, 
uprooted, destroyed, dies, or becomes, in the opinion of the local planning 
authority, seriously damaged or defective, another tree or plant of the same 
species and size as that originally planted shall be planted in the same place, 
unless the local planning authority gives its written consent to any variation. 
REASON: In the interests of visual amenity in accordance with policy D1 of the 
Maldon District Local Development Plan. 

 
11. Within 2 months of the date of this planning permission details of an acoustic 

fence to be installed within the site but adjacent to the existing north eastern site 
boundary with the public footpath connecting Bates Road to Hall Road and The 
Street in Heybridge to the north shall be submitted to and approved in writing with 
the local planning authority. The acoustic fence as approved shall be then 
erected within 1 month following approval of the details and shall be retained as 
such at all times thereafter.  
REASON: To safeguard nearby residential amenity from any noise and 
disturbance that arises from the use of the site in accordance with policy D1 of 
the Maldon District Local Development Plan. 

 
APPLICATION PLANS / DOCUMENTS: 
 
Application plans: 

 R8.LP01.BR Rev A – Location Plan 

 R8.BP01.BR Rev A – Block Plan & Elevation 

 R8.BP01.BR Rev A – Block Plan & Elevation with Vehicle Dimensions 
 
Application supporting documents:  

 Planning Statement  

 Flood Risk Assessment  

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 25/00605/FUL - Land Adjacent Heybridge House Industrial Estate, Bates Road, Maldon

